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It;s been several months ago.

And you indicated that you had some financial
problems?.

Yeah.

Are those still there?

Yeah -- I don't know.

Would serving on this jury aggravate those, make them
worse?

Not at this point,. Actually I haven't been working .

for a few days any way because of the weather and the

' weather is a big factor in my job.

If you were to serve on a Jjury here for maybe two or
three weeks or even a month, you don't think that
would impact on you financially?

Well, yeah, it probably would to a point.

Would it be something that you couldn't handle?

No.

Okay. Mr. Dean, just gilve me a brief sketch about
your personal background and where you were born and
raised and went to school and so forth?

I was born in Hot Springs and I grew up in South
Dakota most of my life and graduated from Hill City
High School and I have worked in the area pretty much
all my life.

What kind of work do you do?
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I work up on Crazy Horse Monument.

Before that?

I was in mining most of the time and I had a business
for six years and I did taxidermy for six years at
one point.

In Hill Ccity?

Yes.

Your parents still live aroﬁnd_here?

No, my mother lives in Rapid and my father is dead.
Do you have any brothers?

Yes, one brother and two sisters.

Do they live around here?

My brother lives in Hill City and both my sisters
live here in 'Rapid City.

What does your brother do in Hill City?

He runs Dakota Stone Company, it's a company my
father started quite a few years ago.

His name is Jim Dean,.zright?

Yes.

He's your older brother?

Yes.

Have you worked at Dakota Stone at all?

I did up until six years ago.

Worked with your brother?

Yeah.
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Still get along with your brother?

Yezh.

Mr. Dean, would you take a look at the list of nanmes
in front of you and see if you recognize any of those
names? '

No.

Do you know fecognize any?

No, I don't.

You indicated in your questiognaire in answer to a
guestion thaé vyou heard about the case on the news or
read about it and saw it on TV?

Yeah.

Do you remember what you heard or what you had seen?
Well, that that gentleman had been killed in that
donut shop and I guess I really haven't seen much of
it., I don't know. |

Anything stick in your mind?

I doen't know —- nothing I guess in particular.

- Have you or any member of your immediate family ever

been charged with a erime?

I have at one time.

When was that?

Ten years ago I get a D.W.I.

Did you plead guilty or was the case tried?

I pled guilty.
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And with the exception of that, nothing else?

No.

Now, are you aware that the Defendant Mr. Rhines is
here charged with first degree murder?

Uhm—uhmn.

And the evidence is going to show, Mr. Dean, that Mr.
Rhines is a homosexual. Does that's have affect how
you look at Mr. Rhines?

I guess not.

You sald you guess not?

Well, no.

Have you ever known any homosexuals?

Yeah.

Were they friends?

Yeah.

And even though they have a different lifestyle than
yourself, you still regard them as your friends?
Yeah.

Now, Mr. Dean, let me try &nd explain to you and if
you have any qguestions understanding what I'm saying,
don't be embarrassed about asking me to explaiﬁ them
further. This case is a little bit different than
most crimeg. This case is divided into two phases

because the State has requested the death penalty, do

you understand?
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Yeah.

The first phase consists of a trial determining
whether or not Mr. Rhines is guilty of first degree
murder. If the jury determines that the State Has
proven beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr. Rhines is
guilty of first degree murder, then there is a second
phase and at the second phase the issue before‘the
jury is whether or not or what the proper or |
appropriate sentence is and there are only two
options at the sentencing phase. If you find him
guilty of first degree murder, the two options are
life imprisonment without parole of death. You
should understand that the death penalty at the
sentencing phase is only to be considered as an
alternative, if the State proves what we call an
aggravating circumstances. That's kind of a thumb
nail sketch of whether you can consider the death
penalty and what happens at the second phase. I
should also emphasize that ag no time is the jury
required by the Court to impose the death penalty,
that's strictly up to the jury, do you unéerstand?
Uhm-uhm,

Now, before I ask you another question you should
understand that in South Dakota life without parcle

means what it says. If the jury were to impose that
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sentence, that's exactly ﬁhat would happen to Mr.
Rhines, he would spend the rest of his life bebhind
bars. On the other hand, if the jury imposes the
death sentence, that too is what habpens. He's put
to death.

Uhm-uhm.

Let me ask you, do you have any particular views
about the appropriatness ¢f the death penalty?

I guess it depends on the situ;tiOn as far as I'nm
concerned.

Can you e¢laborate on that?

Depending on the seriousness of the crime and stﬁ:f.
You have got to understand thé£ you could not reach,
consider the death penalty until you had first found
that. he was guilty of first degree murder and then
made an additional finding of the existence of an
aggravating circumstance, do you understand that?
Uhm-uhmn,

It's conly after that two-step process can you even
consider.the application of the death penalty.
Right.

Do you have some circumstances_in your mind which
would make the death sentence appropriate as far as
you are concerned?

T guess to a point I guess, yeah.
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Can you tell me what point?

Well, I don't know. I guess I have seen some
situations where I guess I thought it was
appropriate, just things that I have seen on
television and stuff.

What kind_of situations have you seen?

Well, for one thing to me when there is children
involved, when someone does something to children and
it's proven they did it, you know, to me that
wérrants it, I guess.

What other circumstance, aside from children?

I don't know.

Let's assume, take the circumstances that you
describe that there were children involved, why would
you think the death penalty is appropriate in that"
c¢ircumstance as opposed to life imprisonment without
parole?

I don't know. I don't know if.it is appropriate. I
don't know, really. I don't re;lly know what would
be, I guess, for sure. .

Would you feel life imprisomment without parole is a
very severe sentence in itself?

Yeah.

Have you ever thought about which, in your hind,

would be worse?
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Yeah, I guess so.

Which do you think would be the worse?

I suppose I'd rather be alive than dead.

S0 you would think that the death sentence wéuld be
more severe?

Yeah..

As you sit there right now Mr. Dean, have yYou any
thoughts about whether or not the Defendant is
guilty?

I don't know. I guess not. I don't know enough
about it. .

Well, you understand that you have the presumption of
innocence and that the State has to prove the
Defendant guilty?

Uhm-uhn.

So, is it fair to say that you really don't have any
feeling about the Defendant being guilty at this
point in time on the basis of what you might have
read or heard?

I couldn't say ~- I don't know.

Have you réached any conclusion at this point with
the sketchy information that you have as to whether
or not life imprisonment should be the sentence or
death?

I don't know what would be right.
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Would you give the matter a lot of thought before you
ever imposed the death sentence?

Yeah.

Is your child iiving with you or your wife at the
present time?

My wife. We have joint custody.

She lives in Hill City as well?
They live in Rapid.

Does she work?

Yes, for the Department of Revenue,

GILBERT: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: State may ingquire.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

Mr. Dean, first thing I need to ask you, is there
anyth}ng about that experience ten yvears ago that
would cause you to think you couldn't be fair to the
State?

No.

In terms of the way you were treated by the
prosecution or the Court?

No.

I want to ask you a little bit about mainly the death
penalty today. Did you understand that we have got

these two separate phases we might be going through?

Yeah.
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The first phase, of course, if you found Mr. Rhines
not guilty, you'd never get to the second phasé and
it would be all over. Assuming you found him guilty
then you'd move oh to that-second phase and as WMr,
Bulter told you, what I'd be trying to prove to you
in the second phase is that there was at least one
aggravating circumstance that made this case special.
In other words, it's not enough to find somebody
guilty of murder or premeditated murder, there has to
be something aggr§vating or special about it.
Uhm~uhmnm.

Those are circumstances that our legislat;re has
drafted for us and the Court will instruct you what
might be relevant te this case and if the-Court
instructs you what aggravating circumstances you

could consider or what would need to be proven before

‘'you'd consider the death penalty, do you think you

could follow those circumstances, even 1f you
disagreed with then?

I think I could as far as I know.

In other words, the law tells us what they are and
the Judge is going to tell you what the law is and
I'm asking you whether or not you think you can
follow the law?

Yeah, as far as I know.
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You understand, before you could ever consider
imposing the death penalty, I'd have to prove one of
those aggravating circumstances beyond a reasonable
doubt?

Uhm-uhm.

‘Mr, Bulter was asking you about circumstances and you

mentioned children was something you thought came to
mind as a circumstance that might be appropriate for

the death penalty?

Uhm-uhm.

Why is it that you feel that way with children? I

know some o¢f these questions are being asked twice,

but this is the only time we have to talk to ysu. ~

Well, I guess children are pretty helpless, what
happens to them in most circumstances, I don't know.
Can you think of, if you den't mind, I think it would
be hélpful to us and if wyou can't think of any
others, that's all xight. This isn't a test, but can
you think of any other situations at all that you
thought about personally or you seen on TV where you
thought the death penalty might be appropriate?

One that ceomes to mind to me is just recently, I
cén't remember whoe it was wheré they hung the
gentleman and he admitted to killing those kids and

said he would do it again if he got out, and to me
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that was appropriate.
In that case was it a concern to you that he killed

the kids or a concern that he kind of chose that form

of punishment in terms of choosing hanging over some

other form of execution?

Doesn't matter to me how they did it, just the fact
that -- I don't know, he pretty much said he would do
it again and what he did do was pretty bad, I
thought, and in that situation I could agree with
that. I don't know.

Are you telling me that as you analyze these kind of
éasas, oné of the things you look at is the how and
the why, how it happened and why it happened, is that
what you are saying?

Yeah, I guess so.

I need to ask you some guestions a little bit about
actually being on the jury, if that would be okay.
Do you remember when you got your questionnaire?
Yes.

When you got your questionnaire and you filled it
out, did you ever think, I'm actually going to be
there in Court answering these duestions?

I thought it was possible, yeah.

Well, you are here and we are going through it and I

need to take you one step further, if I might, and
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there is a very real possibility now that you are
going to be on the jury and if I may, what I am going
to try to attempt to do is, take yvou there to see
what it might be like on the jury. As I do that, I'm
not trying to get any commitments or promises from
you, I Jjust want you to visualize yourself doing some
1
things on the jury?
Okay.
If you are picked for this jury, and of course, you
would deliberate on the first part of the case and I
want you to assume that you did so and that you found
Mr. Rhines guilty, okay, just an assumption, and I
want you to assume that after you had done so you
went back and you considered the aaditional evidence,
if any, and you decided whether or not there was an
aggravating circumstance. Assume you found one and
let's assume then that you, aleng with your other
jurors decided the death penalty was appropriate,
just an assumption, you are not committed to that,
and also assuming all that, Mr. Dean, if you look
over in those chalirs over there, if you reach that
vérdict, sentencing verdict, then at some peint in
time you would be called into the courtroom after you
told the Judge you had a verdibf and in front of the

Judge and in. front of the Defendant, Mr. Rhines, that
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verdict, that unanimous verdict would be read, a
verdict putting Mr. Rhines to death. What I'm trying
to find out from you, Mr. Dean is, assuming the facts.
were there and assuming you were convinced that that
was the right thing te do, can you visualize yourself
being part of a jury imposing the death penalt} upon
someone, in this case, Mr. Rhines?

I guess whatever the circumstances ended up being, I
don't know, I would do what I felt was right that's
all I can say really. ‘

If I can just take it one step further for you. Same
thing, after the jury would return its verdict, as
you may know, maybe not, in criminal cases everybody
has to agree, in other words, an individual’s vote
has to count and you couldn't have that individual
vote. One of the things that happens after a verdict
is returned is that the jury may be polled, that is
asked, each oné individually, whether or not that is
their verdict. 1In other words, during that polling
process your name could be called out and they'd ask,
Mr. Dean, whether or not that was your verdict and
you'd have to respond before thé Court and the
Defendant whether or not, yes, that is my verdict
imposing death upon someone right im front of you and

in that case, Mr. Rhines. Can you visualize yourself
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being able to do that, if that was your verdict?

If that ended up being a verdict, yes, I guess so.
Are you uncomfortable at all as you think about it?
A little bit, yeah.

And can you tell me a little more about it. Is it
because us don't sit in judgment on someone else?
It's pretty serious issue to me.

When you say it is a pretty serious issue to you, I
know it's important, but what is the thing that
really strikes you about it that makes it so 80rTrYy
serious?

Well, you are basically making a decision about
somebody else's future in life..

Yeah, whether they're going to live.

Right. .
What I'm trying to determine is whether or not you
think you can make that kind of life or death
decision? _

As far as I know I think I could.

Do you have some reservations about it?

I don't know, It's just pretty serious ;o me. It's
nothing I would take real lightly.

Do you think, Mr. Dean, that assuming you found the
Defendant guilty of first degree murder and you went

to that second stage, do you think as you went into
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that second stage you'd sort of have a predisposition
towards one penalty or the other; do you see wﬁat I'm
getting at?

Yeah. I don't know. A lot of it depends on a lot of

circumstances I guess.

" Have you heard -- strike that. Do you have any

friends out there who are opposed to the death
penalty?

I don't know. I guess it's not something feally that
I can rememéer sériously talking about lately.

What I'm trying to get at is, let's assume that the
death penalty was the verdict of the jury, that you
were on and people knew you_-were_on the jury and the
case was over and you rendered your verdict and you
went back out to your job in the coﬁﬁunity, can you
think of anybody out there that would give you a hard
time for coming back with the death penalty in this
case?

No, not that T know of.

Did you understand from Judge Konenkamp the other day
what the burden of proof is in a criminal case?

Yes.

What did you think that was from listening to Judge
Ronenkamp?

Well, beyond a reasonable doubt; it's got to be-
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something that pushes it one way.or the other, I
guess.

When we deal with the burden of proof, beyond a
reasonable doubt, the Judge will instruct you at the
end of the case what that means and you'll be able to
read the instructions apd deliberate. You know
that's the same standards we have in a speeding
ticket case or a D.W.I. case or a theft case, right
down the line, it névér changes, it's always proof
beyond a reasonable doubt. In other word;, it
doesn't go up just because the ;harge is more
serious, it's always proof bevond a reasonable doubt.
Do you think that you would keep that burden where it
ié, that proof beyond a reasonable doubt or just
because this is a pretty serious case involving
possible capital punishment that you'd raise it to an
absolute certainty, which has never been required by
our law?

I guess I would just try to follow the way it's
supposed to go the way we will be instructed to do
it. k

Same thing will come up in the second stage when you
consider the aggravating circumstances, if any. Once
again they'll have to be proven beyond a reasonable

doubt, but not to an absolute certainty, are you with
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me?

Yeah.

I'm wondering if you will keep the State's burden at
proof beyond a reasonable doubt and not raise to an
abgolute certainty just because this is a nmurder
case? Do you think you can do that?

I think I can.

What kind of work are you doing now, Mr. Dean?

I do demolition work.

Who do you generally work for?

Paul Mual.

Do you work with other people on the job there?
Yeah. .

How many people are on your c¢rew?

Full time there are six of wus.

Gernerally, dces you are crew work together most of
thedtime?

Well, we sort of have our separate jobs we do, but we
work together, but yet they have, we have our certain
jobs and we basically do ours, I guess

Are most of these people in the Hill City area or
where do they live at?

Custer most of theﬁ.

How much older is your brother than you?

Year and a half.
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You went to high school together in Hill City?
Uhm-uhm. g

On the gquestionnaire and during Mr. Butler's
questioning you mentioned a little bit about the
divorce situation. Did you have a lot of anger about
tﬁat divorce?

Yeah.

Would you consider yourself to be a very emotional
person?

Not generélly. That was a pretty rough time for me.
If I stayed general about it, could we talk about it
a little bit?

Yeah.

Did it come as a surprise to you when it happened?
Uhm-uhm.

And I take it you were very close to your daughter?
Yeah.

You were very close to your child?

Yeah. ’

Has it made it difficult in terms of visitation, made
it difficult to see your child since the divorce?
No, that's something we never had any trouble with.
Would it be fair to say that at least in your mind

that it was a marriage that you hoped was going to

work?
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MR.

THE

Yezh.

Even after these many months, are you completely over
ie?

Not completely.

There is still a lot of pain involved?

Yeah, a little.

GROFF: Thank you for bearing with me. 'Pasg for
cause.

COURT: Mr. Dean you remain a mprospective juror on
this case - and jit's very important that ﬁou not
discuss this case with anyone or let anyone talk to
you about it and also that you not read or listen to

or view any media accounts concerning this case. Do

You promise me you'll not do these things?

MARK DEAN: Yeah, I do.

THE

COURT: We will contact you when we are ready to have
you come back in, but in the unlikely event that we
are unable to reach you, I'd ask that you call us
tomorrow afterncon and check in with us to make sure
that we haven't been trying to reach you. Defense
may exercise. The record will show that the defeanse
has exercised its 17th peremptory challenge and the
Clerk will call in the next prospective Jjuror. Good

morining, Miss Woodson?

WILMA WOODSON: Good morning, Judge.
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STATE OF SOUTH DAXKOTA )

COUNTY OF PENNINGTON )

APPEARANCES: .

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA,

Plaintiff,

IN CIRCUIT COURT

SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

JURY TRIAL

CHARLES RUSSELL REINES,

Defendant. VOLUME VIIZX

The following matters were had before. the

HONORABLE JOHN K. KONENRKAMP, Circuit Judge at’
Rapid City, South Dakots, on the 12th and 13th
days of January, 1993.

MR. DENNIS GROFF, MR: JAY MILLER, and.

" MR. HMAREK VARGO
State's Attornev's Office

Pennington County
Rapid City, South Dakota

FOR THE STATE

MR. JOSEPE BUTLER
Attorney at Law

PO Box 2670

Rapid City, South Dakota

MR. WAYNE GILBERT
Attqtgey at Law i
3202 West Main Street
Rapid City, South Dakota

MR. MICHAEREL STONEFIELD
Public Defender
Pennington County

Rapid City, South Dakota

FOR THE DEFENDANT
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THE/ COURT: Good afternoon, sir. You timed it just

EXAMINATION BY MR. STONEFIELD:

Q
A

right. We appreciate your patience in waiting all
afternoon for us
We previously swore you in, so you remain under oath

now. The defense may inqguire.

ng previonsly besn

You are William Brown?

Yes.

I'm Mike Stonefield and I'm one of the attorneys
represent%ng Charlie Rhines thfs the man seated
right here in front of me and this is Joe Bulter
another attorney and Wayne Gilbert another attorney
on his case. You sat through the orientation process
last week and you understand generally what it is we
are here for today?

Uhm-uhm,

You understand that Mr. Rhines is charged with murder
in first degree murder?

Yes.

I'd like to ask vou, first.of éil, and we will be
having a number of quqstions for you, but first of
all, if you could telil us what, if anything, yoﬁ know

about this case?
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Cnly thing I know is what I heard on the television.
I'll ask you to be specific about what you heard on
the television as best as you can remember?

That the boy was killed and that he worked in a donut
shop, I think and that's about it.

Anyéhing more than that?

At that time it took them awhile to arrest SOmebody.
Have you heard or read anything about the case
recently?

Just what is on television, that they're selecting a
jury and I knew that from being here.

Would you say that over the months, over the past few

~months that your knowledge about this case has c¢ome

from discussing it with other people or hearing about
it on television or‘;eqdihg about it in the newspaper
or has it heen from all those things?

Just basically télevision.

Do you recall ever reading anything in the newspaper
about it at all?

I don't get the paper.

Do you read it at all regularly or at all?

No.

Havé'you ever heard anybody express an opinion éboutg
Mr. Rhines?

No.

ieds
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Have you ever heard anybody express an opinion about
Mr. Rhines as to whether he's guilty or not guilty of
these charges? !

No.

Have you yourself ever formed anj.kind of an opinion
about that?

No.

One of the things that was discussed the other day
during the orientation process and this is something
maybe you are familiar with, was the legal concept of

the presumption of innocence: do you remember hearing

about that?

Uhm-uhm.

Do you feel that you understand what that means?

Yes, I think so.

Any person charged with a crime is presumed to be
innocent and that presumption follows him throughout
the entire case unless it's overcome by evidence
beyond a reasonable doubt?

Yes,

And do you believe you understahd that?

Yeah.

And you feel that that's a good_presumption to have?

Yes.

As you sit thére right now, do you have any problem
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applying that presumption of innocence to Charles
Rhines?

No.

None whatsoever? Okay. You understand why we have
to ask about this?

Oh, yeah.

I don't mean to seem like I'm prying or anything, I
just want to be as clear on a number of things as I
can and you understand why we are doing this?
Uhm—-uhm. .

You have never served on a jury before?

No.

You did mention one thing, Mr. Brown, vou had a
custody case apparently parental custody of your
daughter a few years ago?

I have custody of my daughter and we've been in Court
ten times and it's been up to the Supreme Court and
there is another hearing coming up. It's been in
Court since 1986 and it's still in Court.

And it's still unresolved?

It's been resolved severdl times.

But it keeps being opened up again?

Right.

You have custody now?

Yes.
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That's the daughter you had gone to pick up from
school?

Yes.

She's eight years old?

Uhm-uhm.

Your employment -~- apparently yéu do-a couple of
different things and right now you are a cdarpenter?
Yes.

And you are alsoc going to school?

Yes.

At Black Hills?

At the air base.

Are you going full-time? -

Six hours.

You spend six hours a week in clasas?

This semester would be, Thursday, from four to ten.
Just one day = week.

Right.

But it's six hours?

Yes,

When does that semester start?

In two weeks.

Have you registered for the class already?
Uhm-ulim.

Have you paid any kind of money or anything?
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I have a student loan a PEL Grant.

If you were to be selected on this case and‘the case
were to take several weeks and you were reguired to
be in here every day, would that mean you couldn't
take the class?

No, I could-make arrangements.

You understand om Thursday you might not necessarily
be able to leave in time to get out there?

Yes.

Do you understand that we really can't tell You what
kind of a time schedule you'd be on or anything like
that?

With what?

With having to ke in Court. We can't tell you that
we'd start at a set hour or guit at a set hour every
day, that kind of thing?

I have made arrangéments. I have someone that will
watch my daughter if I need to stay late a few days.
As far as school, do vou see any problem with it?
No. '

Even if perhaps vou had to misé a Thursday or more
than one Thursday altogether?

They're higtory classes and'I_cén»read the book.

You don't see a problem with that?

No.
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You did mention another thing about your daughter,

You indicated in an answer to the questionnaire here

that there might be a problem, what you said is, if I
was unable to see and spend time with my daughter
beyond two to three days, I am a single parent and

you indicated that as a possible problem?

Well, I didmn't know if during this if you had to stay

.here overnight the entire time or how you guys run

the Court process,

I can't tell you with any kind of certainty now how
you would work it, but I can tell you that there is
at least a possibility that you might be required to
be sequestered for a time to where you couldn't go
home for a time, whether it would be beyond two or
three days, that I can't say. Can you see that as a
problem of being able to sit on the case if it came
to that?

I guess I can make arrangementé, if T have to.
éo You are saying that you'woﬁidn‘t see it as a
problem? '

No. Well, if I am to sgit and it wasn't a month or
something.

I wouldn't anticipate that it would be a month but

You understand that I can't tell you that and nobody

can tell &ou right now whether it would happen or if
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it di4 how long it wﬁuld be?

Yes.

So you are telling us that vou don't see it as a
problem?

I can make arrangements.

Is it the kind of thing that might cause you to be

concerned to an extent that your attention would be

diverted away from the case here?

All T can zmay is if it was for a very ldng time.

What do you mean by a very long time?

A week to me, that would be a little long. She goes
to Alaska in the summer, so I don't see her for ten
weeks at a tims.

Sé it has a possibility of being a problem, at least?
Yosg. '

Mr, Brown, one of the things that was discussed with
You the other day when you went through this
orientation process was the fact that the death
penalty is potentially involved in this case. Do you
remember hearing about this?

Yes.

Were you aware of that before last Monday?

No.

I'l1 take a little time and explain how things would

go in a ¢ase like this, but as 5 general question, do
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You have, as you come into the courtroom here, do you '
have any opinions one waf or another just in general
about the appropriateness of the death penalty?

I believe there are times when it's appropriate.
That's just a general opinion‘you have?

Yeah.

Can you give us any kind of idea as to what things in
your mind you think it might be appropriate?

On treagon, crimes against the government, spying,
and so forth, crimes agains; children.

Anything else in particular?

Exceptionally brutal maybe. '

Let me take a minute and go tﬁrough with you the
procedure about how this case would work, what would
be presented to you if you were to sit. The first
part of the case would be just like the first part of
any criminal case or thé trial of any criminal case
where evidence is presented and the jury makes a
decision as to whether or not the person charged is
guilty and if the person is not proven guilty or the
jury doesn't feel tﬁat he's been prqven guilty that
would be the end of the case. There wouldn't be
anything further and we wouldnft get into punishment .
6r.anything like that if there was an acguittal. IFf,

however, there was a conviction and the jury found
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that Mr. Rhines was guilty of first degree murder,
then we would move on to a second part or second
trial basically; do you understand this so far?
Uhm-uhm.

The death penalty would come inteo play if the jury
found Mr. Rhines guilty of first degree murder and
then we would move to a second trial where there
could be new evidence and arguments made and then the
Jury in this case would be the same jury that heard
the evidence in the first trial and they would then
have to make a decision as to whether or not, first
of all, whether or not there were certain
circumstanceé surrounding the case, what the law
calls aggravating circumstances, whether one or more
of those things surrounded the case, do you
understand that so far?

Yes,

If the jury found there were these circumstances and
these circdumstances did exist in this case, then the
jury would have a second determinations to make and
that second determination would be whether the death
penalty was the appropriate penalty. S0 you
understand that this could be a two-trial process
basically?

Uhm—uhm.
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First part of it would be determining guilt or
innocence and if the determination was innocence that
would be the end of the case. And if the

determination was guilty of first degree murder, we

» would get into the second part and I explained that a

little bit. Do you feel you have understocd so far
what I have gone through?

Yes.

Given your opinions about the death penalty, what you
feel about the death penalt& and what you bripg in
here, the ideas about it that you bring in here
today, I'll ask you to just make some assumptions
here, to assume some things. Assuming that you sat
on the jury and the jury found Mr. Rhines guilty of
first degree murder, assuming that, do you feel then
at that point that in your mind the death benalty
should follow, automatically?

Not necessarily.

Do you think you would want to hear other things?
Uhm—-uhm.

You'd be willing to consider other circumstances?
Yeah.

What kind of other things do_j@u think you'd be
interested in hearing about if‘fou have any idea in

vour mind?

le658

APPENDIX 442




© I o

10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

To know what happened and why.

Can you think of anything aise? Could you say that
your opinion about the death penalty is such that you
can think of certain cases where if the person is
proved to have done something that it should
automatically follow that they be executed?

I really don't understand what yoquant.

Again I'm asking you to maybe make some kina of an
assumption here. Can you think, in your mind, of any
type of situation any type of ¢rime that you may have
heard of or that you can think of in your mind that
would be 2o serious or so severe that the Person who
did that should be executed, should just
automatically be executed?

I don't think anybody should just automatically be
executed. 1It's pretty serious.

Would you say that there is something, this talk
about the death penalty is it something that you ever
thought about much in your life?.

I have always had just kind ofwgasic opinions, you.
know, that there are some things that people do.
Some things?

Some things.

I'm interested -- you indicated here as far as your

education, that vou were a sociology student?
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Major.

Your degree is in sociology?

Yes.

Did your studies in sociology ever involve any
discussion study of the death ﬁenalty?

Not any éléss spent on it.

Do you rec¢all the subject even coming up in a text or
in a discussion or anything like that?

It has, yes. I don't recall the specifics.

You heafd about the death penalty being involved in
this case since last Monday and have &ou thought &t
all about your feelings or re-examined then or
anything like that?

I would have to be shown that it was extremely
appropriate.

And I believe we talked before about ny qﬁestion
about the automatic nature of it and you said in your
opinion it would never .be automatic.

Right. |

Ig that right?

No.

Am I right in assuming that?

Yes.

As you said you'd want to hear other things?

Yeah.
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You indicated on the questionnaire that you are a
member of St. Andrews Episcopal Church here in town.
Do you attend regularly?

On a monthly basis.

Does your daughter go with you or more often?

Nope, that's the only time she goes to church.
Again, a guestion I want to ask, and I don't mean to
seem like I'm prying, but I'll ask, do you comnsider
yourself to be a religious peréon?

I would call it more spiritual than religious.

You indicated on the questionnaire here that you
lived in South Dakota for most of your life. Where
were you born at?

Columbus, Ohio.

Did you live in Ohio all...

We moved here when I was in second grade.

Are your parents still living here?

They're both dead.

What did your father do?

He owned Chris Supply and he éérviced nusic theaters
and fixed the sound systems.

Do you have brothers and sisters?

I bhave a brother and two sisfers. My brother runs
Chris Supply now and my sisters live in California

and Washington State.
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Do you still stay in touch with them?

Yes.

Are they younger or older?

One gister is older and my oné brother and other

sister are younger.

‘They all have kids?

Yeah. My brother doesn’'t.

As siblings, do you still get together whenever you
can?

Yeah, when I go to Alaska the end of the sumnmer to

pick up my daughter, I go through California or

. Washington and visit them.

One thing I'm curious about, the Court system or
having been inveolved in a fairly lengthy Court
proceés, is there anything about that that you think
that we should know that has maybe changed your
opinion about the Court system or made you more
distrustful of it or would you say maybe it's made
you more respectful?

I found that it works.

Before this incident with the custody incident had
you eveér been involved in the Court system before?
I had been in Court for driving offenses.

Minor type things?

Uhm-uhm.
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19 Q Woﬁld-you take -é%t%his list of names and if

o
20 yYou would read that over and tell us if you recognize
21 any of those names.
22 A I don't recognize any of those names.
23 Q Mr. Brown, there is a very real possibility that
24 - you'll be called to serve as .a _juror .on this case, do
25 ' you think there ia anything that we haven't discussed
1663

APPENDIX 447



1¢
11
12
13
14
i5
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

\laﬁmthH

here in this few minutés that wasn't talked about in
the questionnaire, anything else that you think we
should know about in coming to our decision as to
whether or not you should sit on this case; anything
that comes to your mind whatsocever?

Well, the only thing I cap think of is the next
custody hearing is the 10th of February, but I'm sure
that can be postponed.

Do you have an attorney involved in that?

Yes.

I expect if it was necessary you could probably talk
to your attorney about moving it; do you think that
could be arranged?

Uhm—-uhmn.

Anything else that‘you can think of?

Only thing I can say, I would want to make sure I dia
a good job parenting my daughfef. That's the only
thing, I wouldn't want to be a}ay a long, long time.
You indicated before you think that from what we've
discussed with you at least you think that it could
be...

It doesn't sound to me like it ﬁou1d be more than a
couple of days

I want to be clear what you meant by that?

That amount of time wduld be okay. I'm talking if it
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goes a month or something.

You understand that if the trial goes two or three
weeks or however long it mig@t go, that'you'd be
required to be here every day during the day to
listen to evidence?

Right.

MR. STONEFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Brown.

THE -COURT: State may inguire.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

I'm Dennis Groff and I'm the Stafe's Attorney and if
You are picked on the jury I am going to have the
¢hance to present the State's evidence and s0 I need
to ask you some guestions, is that all right?

Yes.

I wanted to mainly go through this procedure on the

death penalty and see if you understand it and see if

You can follow the law, is that all right?

Yes. '

From talking to Mr. Stonefield, did you understand
first of all that we might have two stages here?
Right.

The first stage is whether or not Mr. Rhineé is
guilty of first degree murder.

Right. '

If you find him guilty of first degree murder, you
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move to the second stage, senfencing.

Right.

What I am going to be attempting to prove at the
second stage is that there is at least one
aggravating circumstance that makes this Ffirst degree
murder special; do you ﬁnderstand, something that
aqgravates it to the point where you can consider the
death penalty. Did you understand that from Mr.
Stonefield?

Uhm~yhm.

Now, the first thing I want to ask you is, tpe Judge
is .going to instruct you aS'té?ﬁhat those dggravating
¢ircumstances are that you'll have to consider,
whether or not they have been proven and what I need
to know is, even if you disagree with those, do you
think you can follow the Court's instructions?
Uhm-uhm.

Now, the next thing is, when ydu get to that second
stage, I'm not sure if you will get more evidence
from the State or not. 1In other words, you may just
be asked to consider the evidence you heard in the
first part of the trial, oﬁlyynow to consider it for
sentencing purpeses. If that were to occur, do you

think you could follow the Court's instructions on

that?
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Yes,

That would look into the how and why as to what
happened with respect to the alleged death?

Yes.

What I wanted to get to now for a moment is the
concept of being on this jury, if that would be okay.
Do you remember when you got the questionnaire, Mr.
Brown?

Yeah.

When you got that questionnaire and filled it out,
did you think yoﬁ might actually be here in Court
answering these type of questions?

No, T didn’'t figure it would go this far.

As Mr. Stonefield said, there is a real possibility
you'll be on this jury now, okay?

Okay.

So, .even though you didn't know you'd be here you
actu%lly might be on the jurygthhat I need to talk
to you about is visualizing being on the jury, if
that's okay with you. This will require some
assumptions whenr I go through those assunptions I
don't want you to necessarily think any of that has
happened, I want you to assume it for purposes of
putting you in that poesition. I want you to assunme

for a moment that you are on the jury and that you

1667

APPENDIX 451




=W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
. 33
24

25

have gone through that first stage and just assume
now that you have found enough evidence and you
believe that Mr. Rhines is guilty and you returned
that verdict finding him guilty of first degree
murder. Are you with me?

Uhmrupm.

Just an agsumption, and I wanted you to assume that
You get to the second stage and you hear all the
evidence in that second stagé and you go back and a
later, assuming that the jury finds one aggravating
clrcumstance, do you’knoﬁ what we are talking about
there, and assume that the jufy, after they hear that
and consider all the evidence and the Court's
instructions, let's assume that the jury, including
you, decides unanimously that the death penalty is
appropriate, just an assumption now, if that were the
case, do you see those chairs over there, Mr. Brown?
If we are in this courtroom those are probably thg'.
chairs you'd come back to and sit in when yéur
verdict was read?

Okay.

What I am trying to find out is; based upon our
thoughts about the death penalff and knowing about
what could be invelved, do you;think you can

visualize yourself, if the facts warrant it, do you
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think you can visualize yourself coming back with
your fellow jurors and having your verdict read, your -
unanimous verdict read in front of the Court and the
Defendant announcing that it was your decision to put
him to death. Do you think you could do that if the
facts were there?

Yeah, I could. I would have to be con§inced.

T understand, sir. Let's assume after that verdict
was read this is kind of the same question. After
the verdict was read sometimes in these criminal
cases because they have to be a unanimous verdict,
each juror is asked individually, is that your
verdict, and they'd come to you and say, Mr. Brown,
is that your verdict and then once again, not with
that unaniﬁity anymore one by one you'd have to
announce whether it was or not if you reached that
verdict and you were convinced, can you visualize
yourself facing the Judge and‘ﬁéfendant saying, yes,
that is my individual verdict putting you to death?
Do you think you could do that;if You were convinced?
If that is the conclusion I had come to.

I hope I'm not offending you, I just want to see if
you can face that moment i1f it happens?

It sounds frightening.

Next thing I want to talk to you about a little bit
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is about the concept of getting hassled afﬁer the
trial is over. Do you know anyone that is opposed to
the death penaltx real'strongiy?

No.

S0 you can't think of anyone that necessarily would
give you a hard time if you rendered that verdict and
left the courthouse; can you think of anybody that
would give you a hard time for rendering that
verdict? ,

I don't think so.

When we are dealing with the proaf in the first part

on guilt or innocence or whether we are dealing with
the proof on the second paft on aggravating
circumstances, it's always pfﬁSf beyond a reasonable
doubt, Did you hear the Judge talk about that the
other day? E
Uhm-uhmn.

And to tell you about that again, you know if you get

‘on the case, but one thing it isn't proof to an

absolute certainty?

Yes.

And no matter what the cases .are, whether it's a
speeding ticket or D.W.I. right down the line any
case in our Court system that deals with the criminal

or traffic laws has the sgame sténdafd of proof, in
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other words, it always stays lével,'proof beyond a
reasonable doubt, it doesn't go up to an absolute
certainty just because it gets to be a more serious
case, do you undergtand?

Yes,

Just because this is a very serious case, do you
think you would make the State prove its case to an
absolute certainty or could you keep the standard
where the law has instructed, tp proof beyond a
reasonable doubt?

The reasonable doubt sounds to me that you would h;ve
convinced me.

Before I sit down, yoﬁ told Mr. Stonefield you
thought about treason ang...

Crimes against children.

And extremely brutal deaths, is that what you said?
Yes.

Any other circﬁmstances you can think of that
wouldn't make it automatic or circumstances where you
think the death penalty might be appropriate?

Not really. I would think of something.

You would consider the aggravating circumstances
inétruated toe you by the Court?

Oh, yeah.

MR. GROFF: Thank you, sir. Pass for cause.
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THE COURT: Mr. Brown, you do now remain a prospective
' juror on this ¢ase and I should tell you that we
probabliy will know tomorrow whether You'll be on the
final jury panel. In the meantime, it's very
important that you not discuss this case with anyone
or let anyone discuss it with yYou and you should not
allow someone to discuss it in your presence even.
Also, you should not listen to or watch or read any
news media accounts concerning this case. Can you

promise me you'll not do these things?

WILLIAM BROWN: Yes.

TEE COURT: If you have not heard from us by tomorrow
afternoon, would you please call the Clerk's Office
to check in?

WILLIAM BROWN: VYes.

THE COURT: ‘hank you, sir. You are excused for now.
Could I see counsel for s minute? Who was the

prospective juror who inverted the Golden Rule, do
unto to others as fhey'll do...

MR. BUTLER: Frazey. T don't know if he...

THE COURT: I'm having some questions in my mind about
this gentleman. I know there was a challenge.

MR. BUTLER: We were going to make a record that
requested an additional peremptory.

THE COURT: Well, I'm reconsidering it, so if you want to
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(Prospective Juror JUDY SHAFER, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

A Uhm-uhm.

Q . Mrs. Shafer, I'm Wayne Gilbert and to your far lgft
is Joe Bulter and Mike Stonefield and the three of us
represent Charles Rhines, he's the gentleman seated
here in the middle of the table with a gray coat omn,
the Defendant in this case. Could you iook over that
list of names that's there in front of you and see if
any of them are familiar to you?

A No. .

Q The questionnaire you filled out awhile back, copies
of that have been made available to us and ocbviously
not so we can pry into your private affairs, but
because of the process that we are going through in
making sure that a fair and open minded jury can be
seated in this case. I just‘have a couple of
duestions about some of the matters on the
questionnaire. You are a single parent of two
children?

A Yes.

And you live in Hill City some distance away?

A Yes.
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If you were seated as a jurof in this case and had to
sit and come into Rapid City every day for three or
four weeks, would that present any hardships or
problems for you as far as Your family isg concerned
in taking care of vour kids?

No. ?heir dad lives a block away. He has custody.
How about as far as your work is concerned, would it
be a problem?

Not this time of vear.

Before you came here a week ago yesterday for the

first time had you heard anything about this case?

Very little to be honest with you. I knew that a
Young man was killed in a donut shop. I didn't know
if he was stabbed or shot. The other day I seen it
on the news, that the man that had done it was, I
thought they said he was arresied in a nearby state
like Colorado or something. Other than that I don't

know too much about it.

-Based on what you have heard, do You come here today

with any ideas that Mr. Rhines is probably guilty of

this charge?

No.
You were called as a juror approximately eight years

ago, you were called in, but didn't actually serve?

That's right.
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Were you at the point where you were questiocned or
part of the group of pecple that were gquestioned?

No.

Other fhan that, you haven't served on a jury before?
No. |

Have you or. any member of your family or close
friends éver been touched in some way by the criminal
justice systems, maybe subpoenaed as a witnegs or
been a victim of & crime or a Defendant?

No.

Had you heard of the presumption of innocence before
the Court's instructions that were read to you a
little over a week ago yesterd;y?

Yes,

Generally, are you in agreement with that idea?

Yes.

So, would you agree that the State has the burden of
proof beyond a reasonable doubt and that the
Defendant is not obligated or shouldn't be expected
to put on any evidence at all?

Yes.

If T were to ask you to assume right now that just

agsume that the defense in thié;case_doesn‘t plan on .
putting on any evidence at all, would that change how

you look at the case at all or would you still
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~benefit Mr. Rhines with the presumption of innocence?

Yes, I would benefit him.

Gewe ‘that Mr.

Had you heard or did you know before you came here to
Court a week ago yesterday thaﬁ the State was
requesting the death penalty in this case?

Yes.

Do you have any geperal views or opinions about the

death penalty?

I.don't know. I guess I feel if you intentionally
take a life you maybe should be prepared to give your

own. It would be real hard to do that, though, if

that was up to you.

1682

APPENDIX 461




—

A Y R I

~J

10
i1
12
13
14
1s
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

You mean it would be difficult to actually make the
decision?

Right.

Well, before I get into some of the details about the
process involved, yvou said it would be difficult to
make & decision, but do you think, given your beliefs
about the death penalty, that youlcould be part of a
jury thast would make a decision .one way or the other
on the death penalty?

Yes.

Knowing it wéuld be difficult, but you could still do
it if you were called on?

Yes.

When the State requests and asks that the Defendant
be executed if he's found guiiﬁ&, there is a trial
here and once the jury is seated where the State
presénts the proof that it has and asks the jury to
find the Defendant guilty of first degree murder.
Now, if the jﬁry.is convinced beyond a reasonable
doubt that the State has proved it and that the
Defendant is guilty of first degree murder, then
there is a seéond phase, a second stage maybe even
like a second trial and at that second trial the
Judge would give you more instructions and would

define for you what is called aggravating
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circumstances. These are situations which make a bad
thing worse, because if You get to the second rhase
that would mean that the jury has unanimously found
the Defendant guilty of first degree premeditated
murder. At the second stage then the Judge would
define these things for you called aggravating
circumstances and ¥ou would be asked to make another
decigion, another two decisipns, actually. The first
decision would be if you find that the aggravating
circumstances, that';ne or more of them have been
proved beyond a reasonable doﬁbt, if you are
convinced of that unanimously, then you make a second
decision and that second decision is, should the
Defendant receive 1life imprisonment or should he be
executed. I want to tell you right now that, in
South Dakota life imprisonment means life without
possibility of parole. If the jury's final decision
in this case is that Mr. Rhines should receive a life
imprisonment term, he'll nevervﬁet out. It would be
the rest of his 1ife in prison. If the jury's final
decision in this case is the death penalty, that will
-be carried out. In South Dakdt;”there won't be any
stay of execution or something to happen to save his
life. So, it is the jury's decision and that doesn't

happen in any other kind of criminal case. In all
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other kinds of criminal cases in South Dakota the
judgeﬂmakes the sentence, but because the death
penalty is involved here the jury makes the sentence.
It doesn't have to be the death penalty. There is no
situation where the jury would ever have to. Even if
you find an aggravating circumstance, even then you
make that decision should it be death or life without
parole.

When I asked you a few minutes ago if there were
circumstances which yoﬁ c¢ould think about that the
death penalty would be appropriate, and you maigd
something like, and I may get this wrong,. where a
person intentionally takes someohe else's life then
he should be prepared maybe to pay with his own. I
think you said something liké'ﬁhat. Now, knowing
that there is this process you have to go through ‘and
there are two stages and thaﬁlfﬁe aggrayating
circumstances have to be provéé:beyond a reasconable
doubt and even then you are not required to impose
the death penalty, do you think that if at the end of
the first stage you are satisfied beyond a reasonable
doubt that the Defendant has been proved guilty of
first degree, pfemeditated murdei; that you'd want
right then and there to impose the death penalty or

would you want to know more o:%think about it more?
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I think I would probably want to think about it more.
So therg wouldn't be any automatic decision on your
part as far as the deathtpenalty is concerned?

No. .

Would you say that you are a religious;person?
Not a lot, no.

Do you believe in God?

Yes.

Is there anything about the beliefs that you have
about religion and God that éffect how you view a
request for a death penalty in a case?

No.

Would you say that you place adhigh valge on human
life? \

Yes.

Is that why you said that it would be a difficult
decision to have to make?

Yes.

Do you think that if you were on a jury that
uhanimously found guilty of first degree,
premeditated mirder, beyond a reasonable doubt, at
that point you'd be leaning one way or the other?
Would you be kind of leaning towards the death

penalty or leaning away from the life imprisonment?

I don't know if I could say either way.
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MR.

You'd be entering that second phase if you get that
far with an open mind on that?

Uhm-uhm.

Can you think of any circunstances in which you think
the death penalty ohght to be automatic, where you
don't even need to hear about aggravating
circumstances, just think that what's happened is so
bad that it just ought to be the death penalty?

No.

In other words, would it be fair to say that no
matter how horrible tﬁe murder or crime was you'd
want to know more before you made a decision to have
a Defendant put to death?

Yes.

GILBERT: No further questions.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

Ma'am, I'm Dennis Groff and I'm the State's Attorney
and I am going to have the chﬁﬁce over the next
couple of weeks to present the‘State's case to you
and because I am going to be doing that, one of the
things I do first is to pick a jury that could be
fair’to both sides and do you understand that the
State has asked and I have asked for the death
penalty in this case, énd do you understand that now?

Yes.
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And do you know from what Mr. Gilbert teld you that
it's not the Judge that does that, 12 people that we
select here?

Yes. |

Can you understand how important this process is?
Yes.

As Mr. Gilbert was telling you, assuming you find Mr.
Rhines gullty of first degree murder, then there’'d be
this second stage and I think you told Mr. Gilbert
that you have high regard for human life?

Yes.

Just based upon that alone, de you think that somehow
vou can't consider the death:pénaity?

No.

I need to let vou take a momenﬁ‘here, because we are
interested in your thoughts Qﬁ&'views,veveryone in
this room, and can you think of not automatically at

all, but any circumstances at all where you think the

‘death penalty might be appropriate. Just take a

moment?
Yes, I think there are.

Now that you have thought about something that might
be there, I realize it is not automatic and you know
that too but some cases where it might be

appropriate, can you tell us what you just thought of
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please?

I think if you intentionally>go to take somecne's
1ife, then the death pénalty could be appropriate.
Not automatic, but it could be?

Yes.

In this case when yoﬁ get to that second stage, the
Judge is going to tell you what aggravating
circumstancea you may cornsider, to see if the st;te's
proven them beyond a reasonable doubt, and it's going
to be my job, the State's job in that second case to
convince you that at least one of these aggravating
circumstances is present in this case and it takes it
out of this general catagory of first degree murder
and takes it up one more atep to murder that you can
consider the death penalty on; do you understand?
Yes.

Do wyou believe that you can follow the Court's
instructions as to what those aggravating
¢ircumstances are in South Dakota?

Yes.

And even if you were to disagree with those
instructions or never even thought about them, do you
think you could still follow them?

Yes.

Now, you said to Mr. Gilbert, and I made a note of it
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here, that you would be able to keep an open mind as
you went into that second stage as to whether or not
it would be life or death, and then you also told him
that you thought in that seéond stage you might want
to know more, is that right?

Uhm—uhm.

What is the more that you were talking about, what
more would you want to know in the second stage?
Maybe explaining a little bit more about the extra

circumstances.

‘

Let me ask you this then. I understand what vou are
saying and I'll get back to it, but you realize that
just because vyou have heard this evidence in the
first part of the case where you are going to decide
guilt or innocence, that same evidence would likely
be considered as to whether or not on the how and why'
of it happening, whether or not circumstances wefe
met that made it special, db‘fdu undexstand?

Yes.

You don't have to say we made that decision let's
leave that behind. You would take that into that
second stage with you, do you understand?

Yes.

You were just telling me that in the second stage you

would look at the evidence and you would do more
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analysis as to the why and how?

Yes.

Based upon your review of that evidence, you would
consider whether or not one of thes§ aggravating
circumstances was present, is that what you are
telling me?

Yes.

I am going to have to go into this, because T need to
know. You said that it would be difficult to go
ahead and make that kind of a verdict?

I think it would be 4ifficult for anvone.

I'm not trying to give vou a hérd ﬁime about that,
but what I need to do is get. you to visualize what
thal might be like, so if you Eqn bear with me and
follow me for a minute. Do you remember when you got
the questionnaire?

Yes.

And when you got the guestionnaire and you filled it
out, did you think you might actually be in a
courtroom like this decidinq or we are deciding
whether you can be a fair juror? Did you think you
woﬁld come down here? 1 -

Yes.

Could you visuélize yourself, éﬁen though you had

that piece of paper at homne, being at home and
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that’'s what I want to take a step further. Without
helding anything against me, could you make some
assumptions? I'm not trying to get you to comnit to
any decision, I am just going to try to get you into
that jury box, even though you are not there, and I
want you to assume for a moment that you are picked
on this Sury, because there is a very real
possibility you will be. Assume you are on that jury
and you listened to the first part of the case and
you weighed the evidence carefully and you considered
the Court's instructions and you decided beyond a
reasonable doubt that Mr. Rhines is guilty of first
degree murder, okay? ‘

Uhm-ubm.

The verdict has been brought back and then we can get
to the second stage and let's assume we get to the
second stage and you consider the evidence and you
cafefully consider those aggravating circumstances
and you consider everything you hear in that second
stage and you go back and deliﬁéfate and let's assume
that you, as a jury, find that one of those
aggravating circumstances is present. Now you domn't
have to at that point in time come to & conclusion
that the death penalty is appropriate, but you may.

Do you see what I'm saying?
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Uhm~uhm.

Let's assume for the moment‘thgt you come to that
conclusion based on the factsﬁfou heard and
instructions of the Court and you believe the death
penalty is the appropriate verdict, them you would
come back and you would sit in one of these chairs if
we were in this courtroom, and. the foreman of the
ju:y would read or pass to the Judge the verdict and
that verdict would be read in front of everybody in
the courtroom, the Judge, the Defendant, with all of
vyou sitting there facing the Defendant announcing
your verdict, which in that case would be putting Mr.
Rhines to death. As you think about your views, and
I realize you don't hqve»anfifgcté to work with, but
as you think about your views, if you were convinced
that was the right thing to db;ido you think you
could visualize yourself being on a jury doing just
that?

Yes.

Now, something else I need to warn you about, and
that is, if you are on that jufy ;nd it was a
unanimous decision, after the verdict was read
something else could happen. What could happen is
that each individual juror couléd be polled right out

there in front of everybody; is this your verdict
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putting Mr. Rhines to death, ahd they'd come to you,
ma'am, and ask yvou and after they asked you then
you'd have to respond, yes or ho. Can you visualize
yourself saying, if you were convinced, it was the
right verdict, yes, that's my verdict putting Mr.
Rhines to death; can you visualize yourself doing
that?

Yes.

Do you have any friends or relatives or acqguaintances
who vou %know are just adamantly opposed to the death
penalty?

No. HEN

Can you think of anyone out there, if you were to go
ahead and make a decision like this, I realize a
difficult and important decision, but if you made it
and you came back in the courtroom and gave a death
verdict, can you think of anvone that would give you
a hard time, once you left the courtroom and got back
with your regular life?

No.

The last thing I want to talk to you about is, just

the burden of proof. Do you fémember Judge Konenkanp

explained the burden of proof a week ago Monday?

Uhm-ubn.

That is the same burden that runs throughout our
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Court system, whether it is a traffic ticket, a
D.W.JX. or theft case, all the way to a murder case,
do you understand?

A Yes.

Q Even though the cases may seem to get more serious,
the standards of proof always stay the same. It
doesn't go up just because this is a serious case.
Do you think you would some how make the State prove
its case beyond what the law reéuireb, that is beyond
.their level of beyond a reasonable doubt? Are you
with me so far?

A Yes.

Up t6 & level of absolute ceftainty, which is not

0

required. Do you think you'd make the State proof
.o —dits—-case—to—an—absoclute—certainty amd-not what the™
‘ law requires? B |

A I'm not sure. I think I'd want to be real, real
sure.

Q But if the Court told you that didn't mean you had to
be sure to a perfection or an absolute certainty, deo
you think vou could follow that law?

A Yes. -

Q Same thing with the aggravating circumstance in the
second part, if the Court told you that had to be

proven to a reasonable doubt, do you think you could
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THE

MR.

THE

make it be proven to a reasonable doubt, but not take
it to this other level, which is not required by law
which.is an absolute certainty?

Yes.

Now that you have thought about it, do you think you
have any reservations about it?

No.

One of the reasons you said you'd want te be so

"convinced is because you know yvou might face the

death penalty?

Yes.

Ever knowing that you are going to face the death
penalty possibly in terms of your deliberations, do
you think you can be fair to 53th the Defendant and
to the State?

Yes, I think I'm a very fair person. _

GROFF: No other questions. Thank you. Pass for
cause.

COURT: Ma'am, you remain a prospective juror.
GILBERT: Your Honor, excuse me, but could I ask just
a couple more questions?

COURT: Yes.

(Bg Mr. Gilbert:) Miss Shaferi I just want to, if I
could, and I'd like to ask yoﬁﬂﬁb elaborate a little

bit on the statement yvou made that an individual who
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MR.

THE

intentionally takes someone's life should be prepared
to give his own. Do you mean by that that you think
and believe in an eye for an eye type of thing?

No, I believe that there is always a possibility that
that could happen, and if they did there is =always
that possibility, not for sure, but the possibility.
You didn't mean like a retribution type of thing?

No. No.

GILBERT: That's all.

COURT: As I was saying, you are a prospective juror
in the case, We should know by tomorrow afternoon
whether or hot you are on the final jury panel. If
you haven't heard from us by tomorrow afternoon at
3:00, c¢all the Clerk's Office to check in with us.
Now, it's . very important that you not talk to anyone
about.this case or let anyone talk to vou about it or
talk in your presence about it and you should not:
listen to or read or watch any news media accounts of

this case. Can you promise me you'll not do those

things?

JUDY SHAFER: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. I'm going to adjourn for today.

I'd 1like to reconvene at.a guarter to nine tomorrow
morning so -we can hear the motion for the additional

peremptory challenges, and after that we will proceed
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then to either decide on the issue of the peremptory
c¢hallenges and then the dguestion of how many and
under what method we will select our alternate
jurors. I welcome your suggestions on that tomorrow
morning as well.

THE COURT: Hearing is adjourned for today.

{At which time the proceedings ended for the day.)
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Rhines jury unanimous
for death on 2nd ballot

By Joe Karius
Journal Editor
© 1993, Rapid City Journal

The Pennington County jury that or-
dered the death peaalty for a convicted
murderer gave the defendant every
benefit of the doubt. But the evidence
was So strong that death was the only
fair judgment, according to one of the
male jurors,

“We tried to find every reason not 1o
give him death,” he
said in discussing
how he and six
other men and five
women decided that
Charles Russell

‘We tried to find
every reason not
to give him death.’

"There’s just no way people who
weren't at the trial could judge what we
didw"

One of the women jurors said:

“When you go through this the way
we have and see the damage and the
way that Donnivan was left and the
brutality that was involved, you're living
it with that family. | just have to close
my eyes and visualize Donnivan and
how he was killed and how awful that
wasﬂ

After the trial and hours and hours of
analyzing and de-
liberation, “it was
hard not to go with
the death penalty,”
one of the men said.
“It would not have

Rhines should die been & fair judg-
for the March 8, - Juror in the trisl of ment.”
1992, brutal murder Charles Ruszel Rhines

of Donnivan
Schaelfer, 22, of
Rapid City

The four jurors who agreed to talk
abuut the case with the Journal said
they understood how some people might
be opposed to the death penalty and
that some might not agree with their
decision.

“Bul nobody else saw what we did,”
the man said, “or heard the confession.
There's only 12 peaple who know ex-
actly what went on.”

A second male juror agreed, adding,

The jurors, facing
the choice of the
death penalty for
Rhines or life in prison witﬁw: parole,
started those deliberativas a week ago
Monday, Jan. 25.

“The lirst thing we did,” said one of
the men, “was go over the aggravating
circumstances {at least one needed to be
present for the death penalty). Then we
went to deliberate the actual penalty
and tatked about how we fel. Everyone
had a chance to say how they felt.”

See Sentence on page A2
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